1982

# State of Utah v. Shannon W. Richmond : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

The appellant appeals from the judgment of the District Court in and for Box Elder County, State of Utah, which judgment was that the appellant was guilty of Theft, a Class A misdemeanor.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

On October 30, 1981, the appellant was tried without a jury by the District Court in and for Box Elder County, State of Utah, the Honorable Omer J. Call, Judge, presiding, on a charge of Burglary in violation of Utah Code Ann., § 76-6-202 (1953), as amended, a felony of the third degree. In a memorandum decision dated December 12, 1981 (R. 40), the appellant was found not guilty of the crime charged, but was found guilty of theft of property having a value of more than \$100.00 and less than \$250.00. Counsel for the appellant filed a motion to arrest judgment, pursuant to Utah Code Ann.,

§ 77-35-23 (1953), as amended, on the basis that the defendant had not been charged with the offense of Theft (R. 50). At a hearing held January 25, 1982, the motion was denied and the appellant was sentenced to a term of six months in the Box Elder County Jail.

#### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The respondent confesses error in the trial court below and seeks a reversal of the conviction for the reasons stated below.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The respondent agrees with the statement of facts as set forth by the appellant.

#### ARGUMENT

##### POINT I

BECAUSE THE CRIME OF THEFT WAS NEITHER CHARGED AGAINST THE APPELLANT NOR IS A LESSER INCLUDED OFFENSE OF BURGLARY, OF WHICH THE APPELLANT WAS CHARGED AND FOUND NOT GUILTY, THE TRIAL COURT'S DETERMINATION OF GUILT OF THEFT WAS ERROR.

The respondent confesses error in the trial court's finding the appellant guilty of Theft for the reasons set forth below:

1. The offense of Theft is not a lesser included offense of Burglary. Under Utah Code Ann., § 76-1-402(3)

(1953), as amended, a defendant may be convicted of a "lesser included" offense if "it is established by proof of the same or less than all the facts required to establish the commission of the offense charged." See also: State v. Elliott and Clayton, Utah, Nos. 17350, 17351, and 17358 (decided January 21, 1982), and State v. Williams, Utah, 636 P.2d 1092 (1981).

Under Utah Code Ann., § 76-6-202 (1953), as amended, the elements of Burglary are:

1. Entering or remaining unlawfully in a building or any portion of a building,
2. With intent to commit a felony or theft or commit an assault on any person.

Under Utah Code Ann., § 76-6-404 (1953), as amended, the elements of Theft are:

1. Obtaining or exercising control over the property of another,
2. With a purpose to deprive him thereof.

It has long been the law of this State that because Burglary requires no "taking" or "control," it is a separate crime from Larceny, of which "theft" is an element. State v. Jones, 13 Utah 2d 35, 368 P.2d 262 (1962); Rogerson v. Harris, 111 Utah 330, 178 P.2d 397 (1947). This Court has also held that failure to steal after entering a building with intent to steal is no defense to the crime of Burglary, State v.

Baldwin, 29 Utah 2d 318, 509 P.2d 350 (1973), although, presumably, it would be a defense to the crime of Theft. Thus, under the current statutes, convictions under charges of both counts have been upheld, State v. Romero, Utah, 554 P.2d 216 (1976), a result which could not occur under Utah Code Ann., § 76-1-402(3) (1953), as amended, if Theft were a lesser included offense of Burglary. Because Theft is not a lesser included offense of Burglary, of which the appellant was found not guilty, the trial court's finding of guilt of Theft was improper, and could have only been justified had that crime been charged and the separate elements proved.

2. The appellant was not charged with the separate offense of theft. The Criminal Complaint filed against the appellant charged him only with Burglary, in violation of Utah Code Ann., § 76-6-202 (1953), as amended (R. 3). No separate charge of Theft was ever filed against the appellant. The trial court was without authority to find the appellant guilty of a separate offense, violation of which by the appellant was not charged.

#### CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the respondent confesses error in the court below and requests that the appellant's conviction of Theft be reversed.