1982

# State of Utah v. Shannon W. Richmond : Brief of Defendant-Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF THE CASE

Appellant appeals from the judgment of the District Court in and for Box Elder County, State of Utah, finding him guilty of theft, a class A misdemeanor.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

On October 30, 1981, appellant was tried by the Court, having waived his right to a jury trial, on a charge of burglary, in violation of §76-6-202, U.C.A., a felony of the third degree. In a memorandum decision dated December 12, 1981 (R40), appellant was found guilty of theft of property having a value of more than \$100.00 and less than \$250.00. Counsel for appellant then timely filed a motion to arrest judgment, pursuant to §77-35-23, U.C.A., on the basis that the defendant had not been charged with the offense of theft (R50). At a hearing held January 25, 1982,

the motion was denied and appellant was sentenced to a term of six months in the Box Elder County Jail.

### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant petitions this Court for a reversal of the conviction.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

At trial, both parties stipulated to most of the factual matters with only limited testimony being presented. On May 5, 1980, the appellant along with three others entered Macks Pharmacy in Brigham City. After a short time, the appellant entered the pharmacy area, and then left the store with various drugs. He was later arrested and charged with burglary.

At the end of the evidence the issue of whether the State had proved beyond a reasonable doubt the required element of "an unauthorized or unlawful entry into a building or portion of a building" was argued. The Court found that the State had not met the burden of proof but found the appellant guilty of theft.

### ARGUMENT

The conviction of the defendant of a crime with which he was not charged can be justified only if the crime of theft is an included offense of the crime of burglary.

As this Court said in State v. Clayton, 641 P2d 122 (1982)

an offense is included in a greater offense when,

" . . . all of the elements thereof are included in the elements which constitute the greater offense. When such is the case, the greater offense cannot be committed without necessarily committing the lesser offense, and proof of the greater offense necessarily included proof of the elements necessary to prove the lesser offense."

The element of "obtaining or exercising unauthorized control over the property of another" in theft,<sup>1</sup> is not an element of burglary.<sup>2</sup> In order to be an included offense, the elements must not be such that,

" . . . it is not possible to prove the offense . . . without also proving the elements of both lesser offenses . . ." Clayton, supra.

In State v. Sunter, 550 P2d 184 (Utah 1976), the Court ruled that the crime of possession of an instrument for burglary or theft was not an included offense of burglary.

"For the crime of manufacture or possession of an instrument for burglary as charged in the information all of the elements of the lesser offense of the possession of an instrument for burglary must not only be a part of the greater offense of burglary, but must also be embraced within the legal definition thereof. The gist of the offense of burglary, is the unlawful entry into a building. No entry or attempted entry is a necessary element of the crime defined by Section 76-6-205, and we conclude that that offense is not necessarily embraced within the offense of burglary." (At 185)

This Court also noted in State v. Jones, 368 P2d 262, (1962) that,

1. U.C.A. 76-6-404 as amended 1973.
2. U.C.A. 76-6-202 as amended 1973.

"Obviously a burglary in and of itself is one act requiring no theft, and a larceny is another or second act requiring theft. (Emphasis in original)"

A recent, well reasoned case addressing the present issue is State v. Louk, 285 S.E. 2d 432 (W.VA. 1982):

"Other Courts which have addressed this problem have rather uniformly concluded that larceny is not a lesser included offense of burglary, e.g. State v. Madrid, 113 Ariz. 290, 552 P2d 451 (1976); People v. Tatem, 62 C.A. 3d 655, 133 Cal. Rptr 748 (1963); State v. Rand, supra; Young v. State, 220 Md. 95, 151 A. 2d 140 (1959), cert. denied, 363 U.S. 853, 80 S. Ct. 1634, 4 L.Ed.2d 1735 (1960); State v. Harris, 65 Ohio App. 2d 182, 19 O.O. 3d 1331, 417 N.E. 2d 573 (1979); Gransberry v. State, 64 Okl. Cr. 408, 81 P2d 874 (1938); State v. Parr, 298 N.W. 2d 80 (S.D. 1980). Typical of the reasoning is that contained in State v. Rand, supra, at 814:

'The crime of burglary is complete when the defendant makes an unauthorized entry into a structure if at the time his entry into the building he entertains the actual intent to commit a specific crime therein, which may be theft by unauthorized taking. State v. Field, Me., 379 A2d 393, 395 (1977). The burglar, after making his unauthorized entry with the intent to commit the crime of theft by taking, may change his mind and come out empty-handed; he still could be prosecuted for burglary. But, if he did commit the crime of theft by taking which he intended to commit when entering, he would be subject to prosecution for both burglary and theft, since he would have committed two crimes and could be convicted of both offenses.'

#### CONCLUSION

The appellant submits that the crime of burglary does not include the crime of theft and thus gives no notice to a



defendant of what he may be convicted of and therefor the conviction must be reversed.